1960

Jesse B. Stone v. Salt Lake City et al : Brief of Plaintiff and Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF CASE

Plaintiff brought this action against the defendants to secure the following relief:

BY HIS FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

1. To have declared null and void a purported bid of Salt Lake City Chamber of Commerce to purchase the property belonging to Salt Lake City which is located at the southeast intersection of First South and State Streets in Salt Lake City, Utah.

2. To have declared void the purported acceptance of the above mentioned bid of the Salt Lake Chamber of Commerce by defendant Salt Lake City.

3. The defendant, Salt Lake City, be enjoined from entering into a contract or undertaking whereby it agrees to convey the property above mentioned to the Chamber of Commerce or to defendant, Corporation of the President of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints, or to defendant, Zions Securities Corporation, or any of their agencies or subsidiaries.

4. To enjoin defendants, Salt Lake City and its Commissioners, from conveying the above mentioned city property to anyone until it has provided facilities for its officers and employes while engaged in the performance of the governmental functions of defendant city.

5. To have it adjudged that neither defendant, Zions Securities Corporation, nor defendant, Corporation of the President of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints,

may purchase a site for the erection thereon of a Federal Building, nor use any of their assets in payment of the purchase price thereof.

6. That such other and further relief be granted as may appear to be just and proper, and for costs (R. 10).

In a Second Cause of Action plaintiff seeks to have declared null and void a purported Contract wherein defendant City seeks to sell and the Corporation of the President of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints seeks to purchase a tract of land consisting of approximately 64.59 acres in Blocks 45 and 46, Ten Acre Plat "A," Big Field Survey, situated in Section 20, Township 1 South, Range 1 East, Salt Lake Meridian, in Salt Lake City and County, Utah, such property being generally known as Forest Dale Park (R. 10).

Lynn Fausett and his wife, Fiametta Fausett, who join in the Appeal filed in the cause, a Petition to Intervene herein, together with a proposed Complaint in Intervention (R. 50). There was also filed in the cause in the court below a request for an Amendment to the Complaint, together with the proposed Amendment thereof (R. 58).

In compliance with Motions to Dismiss filed by each of the defendants, the First Cause of Action was dismissed as to all of the defendants (R. 71). The Second Cause of Action was dismissed as to all of the defendants except Salt Lake City and its Commissioners.

In its Judgment of Dismissal the court below stated that it was not necessary to rule upon the Petition of the Fausetts

to intervene or upon the Motions to sever the two causes of action. No ruling was had on the Motion to Amend (R. 72).

This Appeal is prosecuted from the Judgment so rendered.

Following is a summary of the allegations of the Complaint:

1. That the plaintiff is and at all times alleged in the Complaint has been a property owner and taxpayer of Salt Lake City, Utah, and for a number of years was a member of and a tithe payer and contributor to the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints, and as such has an interest in the trust fund held by defendants, Zions Securities Corporation and the Corporation of the President of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints, and that he brings the action for himself and all other persons similarly situated.

2. That Salt Lake City is and at all times alleged in the Complaint has been a Municipal Corporation of Utah, and that J. Bracken Lee, Joe L. Christensen, L. C. Romney, T. I. Geurts, and J. K. Piercey are and since January, 1960, have been its Commissioners.

3. The defendant, Corporation of the President of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints, is a corporation sole, organized for religious and charitable purposes under the laws of the State of Utah, and David O. McKay is and has been at all times alleged in the Complaint the constituted Corporation Sole, of such Corporation.

4. That defendant, Zions Securities Corporation, is and at all times alleged in the Complaint has been a Utah Corporation.

5. That all of the capital stock of defendant, Zions Securities Corporation (except a few shares placed in the names of its Directors to enable them to qualify as Directors thereof), is owned by defendant, Corporation Sole, and that defendant, Zions Securities Corporation, is and at all times alleged in the Complaint has been engaged solely in carrying out a part of the business of defendant Corporation Sole.

6. That defendant, Chamber of Commerce, is a non-profit Utah Corporation, and that Gus P. Backman is and during the time mentioned in the Complaint was its Secretary.

7. That the purpose or object of defendant Corporation Sole as stated in its Articles of Incorporation is to acquire, hold and dispose of such real and personal property as may be conveyed to or acquired by it for the benefit of the members of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints, a religious society, for the benefit of religion, for works of charity and for public worship.

8. That the purpose of defendant, Chamber of Commerce, as stated in its Last Amendment to its Articles of Incorporation is "to promote the general welfare of the City and County of Salt Lake and State of Utah, to engage and assist in social relief work therein and to carry on such other and related activities as are ordinarily and normally engaged in by Chambers of Commerce."

9. That the Articles of defendant, Chamber of Commerce, also provide that the management and control thereof shall be vested in a Board of Governors, eight of whom shall constitute a quorum.

10. That heretofore the Board of Education of Salt Lake City granted an option to defendant, Zions Securities Corporation, to purchase for the sum of \$750,000 a tract of land upon which the Lafayette School is situated. In such option it was recited that the property for which the option was granted was to be used for the erection thereon of a Federal Building.

11. That an action was brought to enjoin the Board of Education from selling the Lafayette School site, and a Lis Pendens was recorded in the office of the County Recorder of Salt Lake County, giving notice that such action had been brought.

12. That no restraining order was issued in said action, and pursuant to the above mentioned option the property covered by the option was conveyed to Zions Securities Corporation, which now holds the title to the Lafayette School property for the purpose of having erected thereon a Federal Building.

13. That on February 4, 1960, a purported bid was made by defendant, Chamber of Commerce, to Salt Lake City to purchase the property at First South and State Streets. Such purported bid is set out in full in paragraph 13 of the Complaint. Among its provisions are the following:

“That the price shall be \$750,000.00 if possession is given on or before January 1, 1961, and \$725,000.00 if possession is given on or before March 23, 1961. That there must be furnished either an abstract of title or title insurance of the property and the title shall be subject to approval by the General Services Administration of the United States Government.”

The purported bid provided for payment of the purchase price by installments and further that if an action were brought to nullify the contract of sale, or if a referendum election were called to question the validity of the sale of property, the bidder at its option would be released from purchasing the property, and any money paid would be returned to the bidder. The purported bid also provided that the property would be conveyed to whomsoever the bidder should designate. A Cashier's Check for \$15,000 accompanied the purported bid.

14. In paragraph 14 of the Complaint the property intended to be covered by the purported bid is described by metes and bounds.

15. In paragraph 15 of the Complaint it is alleged upon information and belief that defendant, Chamber of Commerce, was without authority to make the purported bid for the city property; that Gus P. Backman was not authorized by the Chamber of Commerce to make such purported bid.

16. In paragraph 16 of the Complaint it is alleged upon information and belief that the purported bid made by Gus P. Backman for the purchase of the city property was made at the solicitation of defendant, Corporation of the President, and as its agent, Zions Securities Corporation.

17. In paragraph 17 of the Complaint it is alleged upon information and belief that if the above mentioned city property is acquired by either of the defendants, Chamber of Commerce, Gus P. Backman, Zions Securities or the Corporation of the President, it is planned by them to induce the General

Services Administration to purchase the same for the erection thereon of a Federal Building.

18. In paragraph 18 it is alleged on information and belief that to secure a site suitable for a Federal Building it is necessary that property in addition to that owned by the City must be purchased at a cost of several hundred thousand dollars.

19. In paragraph 19 plaintiff alleges upon information and belief that if the purported arrangement for the sale of the city property is permitted to be carried out, defendant Corporation of the President, or its owned Zions Securities Corporation, will be compelled to pay several hundred thousand dollars for a site for a Federal Building in addition to the amount that will be received from the federal government.

20. In paragraph 20 of the Complaint it is alleged on information and belief that defendants, Gus P. Backman and the Corporation of the President, intend to and will unless restrained by the Court carry out the plan to furnish a site for the construction thereon of a Federal Building, and that such plan and agreement is null and void because:

(a) That defendants, Corporation of the President by its agent, Zions Securities, already have a title to a tract of land known as the Lafayette School site, which it acquired under the pretext that the same was to be used for the erection thereon of a Federal Building, and is estopped from securing an additional site for the same purpose, there being only one Federal Building in contemplation of being constructed at this time in Salt Lake City.

(b) That neither the Corporation of the President nor Zions Securities have any right to use the trust fund held by them to pay for a site for a Federal Building or any part thereof.

(c) and (d) That neither defendant, Corporation of the President, nor defendant, Zions Securities, had at the time complained of any right or authority to purchase a site for a Federal Building, nor to select a site for a Federal Building.

(e) and (f) That if defendant Corporation of the President and/or Zions Securities Corporation is permitted to prevail upon an officer of the United States to select a site for the purpose of pleasing such defendants, and by paying a substantial part of the purchase price, if so purchased, such action will be in violation of Section 4, Article I of the Constitution of Utah, which provides that "there shall be no union of Church and State, nor shall any Church dominate the State nor interfere with its function," and likewise such action will be in violation of the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States, and also in violation of Section 7, and of Section 22, of Article I of the Constitution of Utah, which provide that private property may not be taken without due process of law, nor may such property be taken without just compensation. That if the beneficiaries of the trust fund are deprived of their interest in the trust fund in the manner attempted they will be deprived of such interest without due process of law and without just compensation.

21. In paragraph 21 of his Complaint, plaintiff alleges on information and belief that defendant City was without authority to accept the purported bid for sale of its property at First South and State Streets, and is without authority at this time to sell such property because:

(a) That four members of the Commission of defendant City are and at the time the above mentioned purported bid was made were members of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints, and as such had an interest in the trust fund of defendant, Corporation of the President, and of Zions Securities; that it was and is planned by the defendants herein that the City property at First South and State Streets be conveyed to defendant, Zions Securities, in which the four members of defendant City are beneficiaries, and that said City property is, according to such plan, to be conveyed to the United States Government as a site for a Federal Building. That at the time said purported bid was made and purported to have been accepted, said Commissioners who were and are members of said Church and as such were disqualified from participating in the transaction above mentioned by reason of the provisions of *Utah Code Annotated*, 1953, 10-6-38.

(b) That one of the cardinal principles of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints is that its members shall comply with the announced desires of its leaders, and particularly its President and Counselors. That when it was learned that difficulties were encountered in the proposed construction of a Federal Building on the Lafayette School site, it was conceived by the leaders of the Church that another site should be acquired. That defendant Gus P. Backman, a member of said Church, was called upon by the leaders of said Church to aid in an undertaking to acquire the above mentioned City property, and to get the consent of the proper officers of the United States to accept the same as a site for a Federal Building. That when it was learned that the leaders of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints desired to purchase the above men-

tioned City property for the erection thereon of a Federal Building, defendant, City Commissioners, proceeded to have the property appraised, to have the same declared obsolete, to advertise the same for sale so that a sale might be made to defendant, Zions Securities Corporation, so that the same might in turn be sold to the United States.

(c) That the purported bid of Gus P. Backman for and on behalf of defendant, Chamber of Commerce, having been made without authority, any contract made pursuant thereto will cast a cloud on the title to the City property above described.

(d), (e) and (f) That the above mentioned City property is now and for years past has been devoted to furnishing offices and other facilities for officers of defendant City in the performance of the governmental functions of the City; that such building is reasonably adequate to serve such purposes for a number of years, and that no adequate arrangements have been made for other buildings to serve such purpose, and defendant City is without funds to provide for other buildings to serve for the purposes which are now being provided for by the above mentioned building at First South and State Streets.

(g) That neither defendant, Zions Securities Corporation, the Corporation of the President, Gus P. Backman, nor the Chamber of Commerce, have the authority to purchase the above mentioned City property for the purpose of conveying the same to the United States, and that the purported agreement to sell the same for such purpose will cast a cloud on the title of defendant City, and prevent the City from selling

the same to some other purchaser until after such cloud is removed.

For a Second Cause of Action, plaintiff in substance alleges:

He adopts as a part of his Second Cause of Action the allegations of paragraphs 1, 2, 3, 7 and all relevant allegations contained in his First Cause of Action.

In paragraph 2 of his Second Cause of Action he alleges that prior to January 14, 1959, defendant City was the owner of approximately 64.59 acres of land located in Blocks 45 and 46, Ten Acre Plat "A," Big Field Survey, situated in Section 20, Township 1 South, Range 1 East, Salt Lake Meridian in Salt Lake City and County, Utah.

In paragraph 3 it is alleged: That on January 14, 1959, defendant City and defendant Corporation of the President entered into a contract wherein the City agreed to sell and the Corporation of the President agreed to purchase the property above described.

In paragraph 4 it is alleged that the property above described is known as the Forest Dale Park, and for a number of years prior to the time the above mentioned agreement was entered into was used by the inhabitants of Salt Lake City for playing golf and other forms of amusements for which parks are generally used.

In paragraph 5 of the Second Cause of Action, it is alleged that all of the members of the Commission of defendant City were, at the time the above mentioned agreement was entered into, members of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-

day Saints, holding important positions therein, and as such had an interest in all of the property held by defendant Corporation of the President, and that because thereof were disqualified from participating in the making of said contract by reason of the provisions of *U.C.A. 1953, 10-6-38*.

In paragraph 6 of his Second Cause of Action plaintiff alleges that defendant City did not give notice, did not pass any valid authorization for the execution of said Contract, or declare that said park is no longer useful for the purposes of a City Park, or otherwise inform the citizens of Salt Lake City that said park would be sold or abandoned as a park.

Plaintiff prayed that the Contract for the sale of the Forest Dale Park be declared null and void, and for general relief (R. 11).

Lynn Fausett and Fiametta Fausett filed a Motion to Intervene in the above entitled cause, together with a proposed Complaint in Intervention. The basis for leave of the Fausetts to intervene as alleged in their Motion is that plaintiff in the action was not presently a member of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints, and, therefore, is without interest in the trust fund held by the defendants Corporation of the President and/or Zions Securities; that the applicants may be bound by a judgment rendered in the action, and will be adversely affected by the use of the trust fund held by such defendants, if the same is used for paying a part of the purchase price of a site for a Federal Building, and that if they are not permitted to intervene, needless delay and cost will be incurred by the bringing of a separate action.

In their proposed Complaint in Intervention the Fausetts allege that they are and at all times alleged in their proposed Complaint in Intervention have been tithe payers and contributors to the trust fund held by said defendants, and as such have an interest in such trust fund; that they are and at all times alleged in the Complaint have been residents and taxpayers in Salt Lake City and County, Utah. By their proposed Complaint in Intervention the Fausetts bring their action for and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated, and they adopt the allegations of the Complaint as a part of their Complaint in Intervention.

The Fausetts prayed judgment as prayed for in the Complaint (R. 51).

Plaintiff and the Fausetts asked leave to file an Amendment to the Complaint wherein they alleged that the City Commission did not adopt any Resolution or Ordinance as to the sale of the property referred to; that no lawful bid was submitted; that there was no bid for such property, nor a lawful acceptance of any bid, and the proceedings had on January 28th, and on February 4, 1960, were each of no force or effect to legalize the unlawful attempt to sell said property (R. 58).

Each of the defendants filed a Motion to Dismiss each of the Causes of Action. The Trial Court granted the Motion of each of the defendants to dismiss the First Cause of Action and also the Second Cause of Action as to each of the defendants except the Motion of Salt Lake City and its Commissioners, which was denied (R. 72). Defendants Salt Lake City and its Commissioners also filed in the cause an Answer in

which some of the allegations of the Complaint were admitted, and others were denied (R. 28).

Defendants also filed objections to the Fausetts filing their Complaint in Intervention, and also Motions to sever the two causes of action.

The Trial Court refused to pass upon these matters for the stated reason that it was not necessary to do so. No mention was made by the Trial Court with respect to the Motions of plaintiff for leave to amend his Complaint.

It is upon the pleadings so summarized and the Judgment rendered thereon that this appeal is prosecuted.

Appellant relies upon the following Points for reversal of the Judgment appealed from:

POINT ONE

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN GRANTING THE MOTION OF DEFENDANTS SALT LAKE CITY AND ITS COMMISSIONERS TO DISMISS PLAINTIFF'S FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION, IN THAT SAID DEFENDANTS FAILED TO COMPLY WITH THE PROVISIONS OF U.C.A. 1953, 10-7-2, and 10-8-8, BEFORE MAKING ITS PURPORTED CONTRACT TO SELL THE PROPERTY AT FIRST SOUTH AND STATE STREETS.

POINT TWO

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN GRANTING THE MOTION OF DEFENDANTS SALT LAKE CITY AND

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