1960

## Jesse B. Stone v. Salt Lake City et al : Brief of Defendant and Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

### STATEMENT OF CASE

This is an appeal from a judgment of dismissal entered by The District Court of Salt Lake County upon motions to

dismiss filed by this defendant and similar motions by the other defendants.

The complaint contains two causes of action. The first cause of action attacks the sale by the defendant city to defendant Chamber of Commerce of the property presently housing the police and fire departments of defendant city, located at First South and State Streets in Salt Lake City. This property is to be, in turn, conveyed to the United States for a site for a federal office building. Insofar as this defendant is concerned it is alleged that this defendant has no right to use what plaintiff calls a trust fund to assist in the acquisition of the property for a federal building site. The plaintiff claims such plan is null and void as to this defendant for six separate reasons. We shall discuss these in our argument.

No where in the complaint is there any attempt to define the so called trust fund, the purposes of the trust, the limitations of the trust or the rights of beneficiaries in the trust. It is simply alleged defendant was incorporated as a corporation sole with the right to acquire, hold, dispose of such real and personal property as may be conveyed to or acquired by it for the benefit of the members of the Church for the benefit of religion, works of charity and for the purpose of worship.

In the second cause of action the plaintiff attacks the sale by Salt Lake City of the Forest Dale Golf Course to this defendant. The sale is alleged to be void solely because all of the members of the city commission were members of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints, hereinafter referred to as the Church, and so were disqualified to partici-

pate in the sale and because the city did not proceed with the sale in the proper manner. There are no allegations involving this defendant in any unauthorized activity.

In the first cause of action plaintiff alleges he was once a member of the Church and had once paid tithing and had made contributions to the Church. At the hearing on the motions in the lower court and in his written brief, plaintiff conceded that he was not a member of the Church and that he had no standing to question the use of the funds of the Church. In an attempt to overcome the fatal defect of having a plaintiff who had no interest in the so called trust fund of this defendant, and so had no status to question the use to be made of the same, counsel for plaintiff filed a motion on behalf of Mr. and Mrs. Fausett to intervene. Their complaint in intervention alleged they were members of the Church and had paid tithes and other contributions to the Church. They adopted the allegations of the original complaint. Any further analysis of the complaint that may be necessary will be made in the course of our argument to avoid repetition.

This defendant relies upon the following points for an affirmance of the judgment of dismissal by the lower court:

### POINT ONE

PLAINTIFF, NOT BEING A MEMBER OF THE CHURCH, HAS NO INTEREST IN THE CHURCH PROPERTY AND HAS NO STANDING IN COURT TO QUESTION THE USE MADE OF CHURCH FUNDS, AND FOR THIS REASON PLAINTIFF'S FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION FAILS TO STATE A CLAIM UPON

WHICH RELIEF CAN BE GRANTED AGAINST THIS DEFENDANT.

### POINT TWO

THE FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION FAILS TO STATE A CLAIM AGAINST THE DEFENDANT AS IT FAILS TO ALLEGE: (a) THAT ONLY TRUST FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE AND WILL NECESSARILY BE USED TO PURCHASE THE FIRST SOUTH PROPERTY; AND (b) THE NATURE OF THE TRUST UNDER WHICH THE FUNDS OF THIS DEFENDANT ARE CLAIMED TO BE HELD IN TRUST, THE PURPOSE OF THE TRUST OR WHEREIN THE CONTEMPLATED TRANSACTION WILL VIOLATE THE TRUST AS SO DEFINED.

### POINT THREE

PARAGRAPH 20 OF THE FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION ATTEMPTS TO ALLEGE WHEREIN THE TRANSACTION COMPLAINED OF IS NULL AND VOID AS TO THIS DEFENDANT, BUT SUCH ALLEGATIONS FAIL TO STATE A CAUSE OF ACTION UPON WHICH RELIEF CAN BE HAD AGAINST THIS DEFENDANT.

### POINT FOUR

SINCE PLAINTIFF IS NOT A MEMBER OF THE CHURCH, AND SO HAS NO STATUS TO QUESTION THE USE PROPOSED TO BE MADE OF CHURCH FUNDS, THE FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION IS LIMITED

TO A SUIT BY A TAXPAYER TO RESTRAIN A SALE OF CITY PROPERTY AND FAILS TO STATE FACTS SUFFICIENT TO CONSTITUTE A CLAIM UPON WHICH RELIEF CAN BE GRANTED AGAINST THIS DEFENDANT.

#### POINT FIVE

VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS FOR GENERAL RELIGIOUS PURPOSES CREATE NO TRUST OR BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN THE PERSON CONTRIBUTING.

#### POINT SIX

THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED NO ERROR IN REFUSING TO GRANT THE MOTION OF LYNN AND FIAMETTA FAUSETT TO INTERVENE IN THIS ACTION.

#### POINT SEVEN

THE FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION FAILS TO STATE FACTS SUFFICIENT TO WARRANT A DISREGARD OF THE SEPARATE CORPORATE ENTITY OF ZIONS SECURITIES CORPORATION AND TO MAKE THIS DEFENDANT ITS ALTER EGO AS A MATTER OF LAW OR FACT.

#### POINT EIGHT

THE COMPLAINT FAILS TO STATE A CAUSE OF ACTION BECAUSE IT FAILS TO ALLEGE FACTS SUFFICIENT TO SHOW A BREACH OF TRUST.

## POINT NINE

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN DISMISSING THE SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION AS TO THIS DEFENDANT.

## ARGUMENT

## POINT ONE

PLAINTIFF, NOT BEING A MEMBER OF THE CHURCH, HAS NO INTEREST IN THE CHURCH PROPERTY AND HAS NO STANDING IN COURT TO QUESTION THE USE MADE OF CHURCH FUNDS, AND FOR THIS REASON PLAINTIFF'S FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION FAILS TO STATE A CLAIM UPON WHICH RELIEF CAN BE GRANTED AGAINST THIS DEFENDANT.

There are numerous cases which hold that a person who has left the Church, or has been excommunicated, has no status to question the use being made of Church funds or property, nor can he stand for or represent those who are members. On this point we cite the following:

NANCE V. BUSBY, 91 Tenn 303, 14 LRA 801, 18 SW 874. Here property was conveyed to the Baptist Church with a specific trust to be devoted to a specific and definite faith and order. Plaintiffs, suing on behalf of themselves and members of the Church, charged that the property so conveyed was being used to teach principles contrary to the established order. The court says:



“There may be persons associated with them (plaintiff) in sympathy and interest, who are not expelled members of the church, but, if this is so, complainants cannot stand for or represent such persons. Excommunicated members, whose names have been by the valid action of the church expunged from the roll of members, cannot stand for and represent members. They are not of the same class.”

“Not being members of this church, they are not beneficiaries under the conveyance by which the church holds its church. They have, therefore, no status as enables them to question the use of the property by the defendants. The result is that notwithstanding the force and effect of the verdict, the chancellor should have dismissed the bill.”

This case is followed in *KITTINGER V. CHURCHILL*, 292 NYS 35, 51, the court holding that voluntary contributions are not impressed with any trust, express or implied.

The case of *Kittinger v. Churchill* is followed in *GETHESEMANE LUTHERAN CHURCH V. ZACHO*, 92 NW 2d 905, which quotes therefrom as follows:

“The usual rule applicable to religious societies is that the rights of a member are dependent on the continuance of his membership and when he ceases to be a member his rights and beneficial interest in the society’s property ceases, and he no longer has standing to sue in relation thereto. Nor does the fact that plaintiff may have made contributions to this association give him any right after his withdrawal to sue in relation to its affairs.”

*STEWART V. JARRIEL*, 59 SE 2d 368, 206 Ga. 855.  
The court said:

“An expelled member of a church has no interest in the church property, and excommunicated members whose names have been expunged from the church membership roll by the valid action of the church cannot stand for and represent members of the church in an action to prevent the diversion of church property from its lawful uses.”

RODGERS V. BERNETT, 65 SW 410 and PARTIN V. TUCKER 172 So. 89. These cases cite and quote with approval from NANCE V. BUSBY, SUPRA.

THOMAS V. LEWIS 224 KY 307, 65 SW 2d 255. The court says:

“If the congregation has irregularly removed officers, excluded members, diverted funds, or been guilty of any other irregularity, the correction of such abuses rests with the body of membership of the church.”

See also APOSTOLIC HOLINESS UNION V. KNUDSEN 123 P 473.

From the foregoing authorities it is clear that plaintiff, not being a member of the Church, has no right or standing to question the right or authority of this defendant or Zions Securities Corporation to use funds to acquire a site to be sold to the Federal Government for a federal building site, or to represent members of the Church in such action. Consequently, the first cause of action fails to state a claim upon which any relief can be granted against this defendant.



## POINT TWO

THE FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION FAILS TO STATE A CLAIM AGAINST THE DEFENDANT AS IT FAILS TO ALLEGE: (a) THAT ONLY TRUST FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE AND WILL NECESSARILY BE USED TO PURCHASE THE FIRST SOUTH PROPERTY; AND (b) THE NATURE OF THE TRUST UNDER WHICH THE FUNDS OF THIS DEFENDANT ARE CLAIMED TO BE HELD IN TRUST, THE PURPOSE OF THE TRUST OR WHEREIN THE CONTEMPLATED TRANSACTION WILL VIOLATE THE TRUST AS SO DEFINED.

(a) It is alleged that Zions Securities Corporation, hereinafter called Zions, is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Utah, all its capital stock, except to qualify directors, being owned by this defendant. There is no allegation that Zions may not, under its articles of incorporation, engage in the ordinary commercial transactions. Nor are there any allegations to the effect that the only assets of, and only funds available to, Zions are trust res, or res impressed with a limitation of any kind. Nor are there any allegations that the only funds available to Zions in connection with the transaction under consideration must of necessity come from trust funds held by Corporation of the President.

It is not to be presumed that Zions can not hold or disburse money in the ordinary commercial sense. It is a corporation organized for profit under the laws of Utah. In the absence of any allegation to the effect that by its articles of incorporation it can only hold and disburse trust funds, the

inference must surely prevail that it holds and uses its property and funds in the ordinary commercial sense, the same as any other corporation organized for profit.

There being no allegation as above indicated the complaint fails to state a cause of action, for without such allegations there can be no basis upon which to restrain Zions, or this defendant, from purchasing or providing funds with which the Chamber of Commerce will purchase the property from the city. Plaintiff is a stranger both to Zions and this defendant. He owns no stock in Zions and he has no connection with this defendant. He has no standing to question the right of either to assist in the acquisition of a site for a federal building.

(b) As heretofore pointed out, nowhere in the complaint is there any attempt to define the so called trust fund, the purpose of the trust, the limitation of the trust, or the rights of beneficiaries in the trust. All that is alleged is that this defendant has a trust fund.

There is no allegation that the donors, in making their contributions to the Church, by tithes or otherwise, imposed any trust terms. There are no allegations that such tithes or contributions were donated to this defendant. The fact is they were not. They were contributed to the Church as such. This defendant being merely a legal instrument to hold title to such property as may come to it.

This defendant as a corporation and the Church as an unincorporated religious society are two separate and distinct entities. In *HUNDLEY V. COLLINS*, 131 Ala. 234, 32 So. 575, the court says:

“These provisions of the Code for incorporation of churches or religious societies, and all powers conferred thereunder, relate alone to their properties or temporalities, and have no reference to churches or societies as such, which bodies, as spiritual or ecclesiastical organizations, exist independent of their charters. A church or religious society may exist for all the purposes for which it was organized independently of any incorporation of the body under the statutes of the state.

“Wherever there is an incorporated church, there are two entities, the one the church as such, not owing its ecclesiastical or spiritual existence to the civil law, and the legal corporation, each separate though closely allied. . . . The foregoing is quite sufficient to show that the spiritual entity called a church, made up of members belonging to it, existing without any special law to that effect, is a different and distinct body in the contemplation of law, from the same body when incorporated under the statutes for the purpose—the two having different functions to perform the one religious and the other civil . . . ‘The two bodies, viz: the corporation and the church, although one may exist within the pale of the other, are in no respect correlative. The objects and interest of one are moral and spiritual; the other deals with things purely temporal and material.’ ”

It is necessary to look to Church polity, rather than to this defendant's articles of incorporation to determine the nature and terms of any trust, if any trust exists. This is clearly illustrated in the case of *BENDEWALD V. LEY*, 39 N.D. 272, 168 NW 693, where the court sustained a general demurrer to the complaint, saying:

“The complaint contains no allegations of the ultimate facts, upon which the decision of the case upon its merits must be based. The complaint is wholly devoid of allegations as to church polity except as the constitution affords an indication of its principles of government, and without allegations supplementing the constitution in this particular and without evidence in support of such allegations, it cannot be determined ultimately whether or not the defendants have exceeded the powers vested in them as executive officers and members of the congregation. A plaintiff in an action of this character should not leave open to conjecture the matter of the minority right upon which the claim to relief is based.”

The case of *WATSON V. JONES*, 13 Wall 679, 20 LEd 666, classifies the cases before the courts involving controversies over church property into three classes:

1. Property held under the terms of an express trust.
2. Property held by a religious congregation which by the nature of its organization is strictly independent of other ecclesiastical associations and so far as church government is concerned owes no fealty or obligation to any higher authority.
3. Property held by a religious congregation which in turn is a subordinate member of some general organization in which there are superior ecclesiastical tribunals having control.

It is obvious that the instant case involves the second classification. The court held that under this classification the property is not held under a specific trust or for a trust that can be controlled by a minority, or that may not be used for

such purposes as the majority, or the officers in whom have been invested the power of control, may determine even though they have in some respects changed their religious views.

Certainly the courts should not attempt to intrude into the manner in which a religious body may use its funds upon such scant and inadequate allegations as are contained in plaintiff's complaint. This would be real interference by the state into matters of religion. If a church member wants to have a civil court pass upon the polity of his church, the least that should be required is that he definitely alleged the facts upon which he claims a right to relief. Especially should this be true when he seeks to invoke the extraordinary power of injunction to restrain the Church in its activities.

### POINT THREE

PARAGRAPH 20 OF THE FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION ATTEMPTS TO ALLEGE WHEREIN THE TRANSACTION COMPLAINED OF IS NULL AND VOID AS TO THIS DEFENDANT, BUT SUCH ALLEGATIONS FAIL TO STATE A CAUSE OF ACTION UPON WHICH RELIEF CAN BE HAD AGAINST THIS DEFENDANT.

(a) Paragraph (a) recites that since this defendant, through Zions, already has a federal building site at the Lafayette School site, it is estopped to acquire another site, the First South Site. This objection is wholly specious and frivolous. It is predicated on the proposition that since there is only one federal building in contemplation, ipso facto,

there can not be two sites, hence one having been acquired by Zions, but not by the government, Zions may not obtain another in the hope that the second will be acceptable to the government in place of the first. The final decision in the matter is with the federal government. If it chooses to acquire the Lafayette site the First South site will not be used. If it chooses the First South site the Lafayette site will not be used.

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